
NOTE:  The Council will take a 5-minute recess at 8:00 pm. 
 

 

 

                        HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL 

                   HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

                                     AGENDA 
 

MONDAY                                    NOVEMBER 14th, 2016                                   7:00 P.M. 

   

• 6:00 pm – Finance & Administration Committee Meeting 
 
 

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

 
B. CONSENT AGENDA 

  
 
1. SIGNATURES 

 
 

2. SECRETARY’S REPORTS 
 

a. October 17th, 2016 Council Meeting minutes 
b. November 2nd, 2016 Special Council Meeting minutes 

 
3. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
a. Environmental Trust Committee Minutes – August 11 and 

September 7, 2016 
b. Public Safety Citizen Advisory Committee Minutes – September 27, 

2016 
c. Agenda for Public Safety Citizen Advisory Committee meeting on 

November 17, 2016 at 6 PM 
d. Letter from Maine Municipal Employees Health Trust regarding 2017 

Health Trust Rate Changes – November 4, 2016 
e. MaineDOT Public Notice regarding meeting on November 15, 2016 

regarding work on I-95 Overpass on Newburgh Road/Shaw Hill 
Road 

f. Letter from Goodwill Riders Snowmobile Club, October 21, 2016 
g. Letter from Code Enforcement Officer Myles Block regarding 

changes in building permit requirements effective 11/2/16 – October 
4, 2016 

     
4. REPORTS 
 

a. Planning & Development Committee Minutes – Sept. 21st, 2016 



MONDAY                                    NOVEMBER 14th, 2016                                  7:00 P.M.

      AGENDA 

 

2 

b. Finance & Administration Minutes – October 3rd, 2016 
c. Infrastructure Committee Minutes – August 22nd, 2016 
d. Services Committee Minutes – None 

 
 

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
  
 

D. POLICY AGENDA 
 

1. NEWS, PRESENTATIONS & AWARDS – None  
 
 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

a. Proposed amendments to Outdoor Facilities Ordinance to prohibit 
"vaping" in public parks 

 
 

3. NOMINATIONS – APPOINTMENTS – ELECTIONS –  
 

a. Council vote for MRC Board of Directors 
 

 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None.  

 
        

5. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Re-endorsement of Emera TIF Credit Enhancement Agreement to 
correct scrivener’s error – referral from Planning & Development 
Committee 

 

b. Request for up to $11,000.00 (Option 1) or up to $$8,800.00 (Option 
2) from Police Cruiser Reserve for vehicle equipment including 
Watchguard video camera/recording system – referral from Finance 
& Administration Committee  

 

c. Requests from Municipal Building Reserve for $129.00 for repair to 
security screen at Administration customer service desk; and 
$158.00 for repair to the Fire Station garage door; and for $288.00 
for lock repairs – referral from Finance & Administration Committee 

 

d. Request for $704.81 from Matching Grant Reserve funds for local 
match to MMA Safety Enhancement Grant for Portable LED Scene 



MONDAY                                    NOVEMBER 14th, 2016                                  7:00 P.M.

      AGENDA 

 

3 

Lighting with chargers – referral from Finance & Administration 
Committee 

 

e. Contract award: Sidney Boulevard culvert (to be paid from FY17 
Stormwater Management, Contracted Services) – referral from 
Finance & Administration Committee 

 

f. Contract award and request for authorization of up to $10,000 in 
funding from the Recreation Reserve fund for topographic survey of 
Lura Hoit Pool and Municipal Building site – referral from Finance & 
Administration Committee 

 

g. Contract award and request for authorization of up to $15,000 in 
funding from the Emera TIF fund for electrical repairs to Town 
Center lights – referral from Finance & Administration Committee 
 

h. Resolution endorsing updated Penobscot County multi-jurisdictional 
hazard mitigation plan – referral from Finance & Administration 
Committee 

 

i. Review of Town Council meeting schedule, November – December 
2016 – referral from Finance & Administration Committee 

 
 

e. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

 
f. MANAGER’S REPORT  

 
 

g. COUNCILORS’ COMMENTS 
 

h. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
  



townmanager
Text Box
B-2-a

















 

 

 

                        HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL 

                   HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

                                    MINUTES – DRAFT  
 

WEDNESDAY                                   NOVEMBER 2ND, 2016                                   6:00 P.M. 

   
 

Mayor Ryder called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
In attendance: 
Mayor Ryder       Town Manager Angus Jennings 
Councilor Sirois      Town Planner Karen Cullen 
Councilor McPike      Resident Tom Brann 
Councilor Wilde      Resident Bill Shakespeare 
Councilor Marble 
Councilor Cormier 
Councilor McAvoy 
 
 

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Ryder led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 

B. NOMINATIONS – APPOINTMENTS – ELECTIONS – Manager Jennings reported on 
the current status of the recruitment and hiring process for the Tax Collector and 
General Assistance Administrator position, which will be vacated after Cheryl 
Johnson’s retirement on December 22, 2016. Manager Jennings summarized the 
process that the Council should expect as part of the transition to a new Tax 
Collector, including an agreed Settlement of the status of all collections for every tax 
year with any outstanding taxes due; as well as a Recommitment of FY17 taxes that 
remain uncollected as of the date that the new Tax Collector takes responsibility. He 
noted that it will be required that the new Tax Collector have at least one year of 
experience as a Motor Vehicle Agent in order to take over this portion of the 
position’s responsibilities. There is no candidate brought forward for Council 
confirmation at tonight’s meeting. Manager Jennings reported that he expects to 
bring forward a candidate for confirmation at the Council’s next meeting on Monday, 
November 14. 

 
C. ADJOURNMENT – Councilor McAvoy made a motion, seconded by Councilor 

Marble to adjourn at 6:15 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Angus Jennings 
Town Manager 
 

townmanager
Text Box
B-2-b



HAMPDEN ENVIRONMENTAL TRUST COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING 
 

Thursday, August 11, 2016 
 

5 P.M. 
 

HAMPDEN TOWN OFFICE 
 

MINUTES 
 

Attending:  
Councilor Ivan McPike, Town Member of Environmental Trust Committee 

 Kerry Woodbury, SERF Member of Environmental Trust Committee 
Town Manager Angus Jennings  

     
 

Because no Committee Chair has yet been designated, the meeting was called 
to order by unanimous consent of the Committee members at 5 p.m. 

 
1. Introductions – The two members who have been appointed to the 

Environmental Trust Committee, Ivan McPike and Kerry Woodbury, 
and Town Manager Angus Jennings had all met previously so no 
introductions were necessary. 
 

2. Background regarding Environmental Trust – Angus Jennings, 
Town Manager – Manager Jennings provided a brief summary of the 
process that has led to the re-activation of the Environmental Trust 
Committee, which based on available records has not met since 2009. 
He said that the two appointed Committee members, both present, 
were convened today in order to appoint the third member – the 
“Neutral Member” – pursuant to the Environmental Trust. The third 
appointment will complete the Committee and allow it to proceed with 
its authorized activities. 

 
3. Consideration of potential appointment of Neutral Member by 

Town Member (Ivan McPike) and SERF Member (Kerry Woodbury) 
– Councilor McPike reported that Hampden resident and retired 
businessman Bill Estes had been asked to serve on the Committee 
and has agreed to do so. He briefly summarized Mr. Estes’ business 
background and understanding of financial matters. There was a 
motion by Councilor McPike seconded by Mr. Woodbury to appoint Bill 
Estes to serve as the Neutral Member of the Environmental Trust 
Committee. The motion passed 2-0. 

 

townmanager
Text Box
B-3-a



4. Review of next steps – Manager Jennings stated that the 
appointment of Mr. Estes would be brought to the Town Council for 
their ratification at their meeting on August 15. Once Mr. Estes is 
appointed and sworn in by the Town Clerk, he said that the Committee 
members would then schedule their first meeting of the full Committee 
sometime in September. He suggested the inclusion of three items on 
the Committee’s meeting agenda: a meeting with representation from 
Bangor Savings Bank, which as the Institutional Trustee manages the 
Trust’s assets; presentation of expenses budgeted in the Town’s FY17 
budget that would only move forward upon authorization of $120,000 
from the Environmental Trust (requiring votes of both the Trust 
Committee and the Town Council); and a presentation of Town 
expenses incurred since the prior 2009 meeting of the Trust which, 
subject to approval of the Trust and Council, would be eligible for 
reimbursement from the Trust. 

 
Councilor McPike said that the Committee should receive regular 
financial statements regarding the Trust’s assets, both principal and 
income. There was brief discussion regarding eligible uses for Trust 
income based on the language of the Trust.  
 

5. Adjourn – There was a motion by Councilor McPike, seconded by Mr. 
Woodbury, to adjourn the meeting, and by a 2-0 vote the meeting was 
adjourned at 5:15 PM. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted –   
Angus Jennings, Town Manager  
 



HAMPDEN ENVIRONMENTAL TRUST COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING 
 

Wednesday September 7th, 2016 
 

8:45 A.M. 
 

HAMPDEN TOWN OFFICE 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. Introductions – Councilor Ivan McPike, SERF member Kerry 
Woodbury and Town Manager Angus Jennings were present along 
with the Town Clerk. No introductions were needed as all members 
knew one another. 
 

2. Background regarding Environmental Trust – Angus Jennings, 
Town Manager – As there were no members of the public present and 
the potential nominee was not present, the background information did 
not need to be shared with those present.  

 
3. Consideration of potential appointment of Neutral Member by 

Town Member (Ivan McPike) and SERF Member (Kerry Woodbury) 
-Councilor McPike nominated Ken White as the neutral member of the 
committee. He runs F. A. Peabody Insurance and hails from a family 
that has been in Hampden for many years. Kerry Woodbury seconded 
the nomination. By unanimous consent it was agreed upon to appoint 
Ken White to the Environmental Trust Committee.  

 
4. Review of next steps – Manager Jennings stated that it was too late 

to get the confirmation of Ken White on the agenda for the 8th, but it will 
be on the agenda for the Council meeting to be held September 19th. 
After Council confirmation we can arrange to have Ken sworn in the 
following day and then the members can schedule the first meeting 
that will also tentatively include bank representatives and their in house 
attorney.   

 
5. Adjourn – By unanimous consent the meeting adjourned at 8:51 a.m. 
 

 Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 
 
 
 Paula A. Scott, Town Clerk 



Hampden Public Safety 

Citizen Advisory Committee 

Minutes 

9-27-16 

 

 All committee members were present:  Michael Allen, Brian Bouchard, Nicholas 

Raymond, Rev. David Nicol, Wally Fraser, Nancy Fenders, Jamie Sinclair and Terry 

McAvoy.  Also present were PSD Joe Rogers, Sgt. Chris Bailey, Lt. Jason Lundstrom, 

Sgt. Scott Webber and FF/Paramedic Chris Liepold.   

 

 Sgt. Bailey explained the mission of the committee is to increase communication between 

citizens and the public safety department.   

 

 PSD Rogers gave an overview of Hampden Public Safety and answered questions from 

committee members. 

 

 Members discussed their public safety concerns and why they were interested in the 

Citizen Advisory Committee.  Elderly issues, (isolation and food security) and drug 

issues were discussed.  Sgt. Bailey discussed how the Heroin epidemic has affected the 

Town of Hampden.   

 

 Members discussed the Marijuana Legalization Referendum and for public safety to be 

thinking about the impact on the community.  There was a suggestion to get information 

out to the public.   

 

 Members discussed identifying organizations and resources in the community to assist 

with various issues, i.e. drugs, the elderly etc.   

 

 Members discussed having a community forum in conjunction with the schools to 

educate parents on drug trends.  Possibly include information related to community 

resources.   

 

 Members discussed the frame work for future meetings: 

 

 An educational component at each meeting.  Ex. Jaws of Life, visit to PRCC etc.  

Members will e-mail Sgt. Bailey with ideas. 

 Will profile a public safety employee at each meeting. 

townmanager
Text Box
B-3-b



 E-mail will be the primary communication source.    

 Members identified Thursday as the best day for meetings.  The first few 

meetings will be monthly.  The meetings will eventually be quarterly.   

 Have the SRO come to a meeting to discuss teen issues. 

 Discuss crime trends at each meeting. 

 Discuss the number and types of calls related to the elderly at each meeting.   

 Have a student on the committee.  The student should be a citizen of the Town of 

Hampden.  Sgt. Bailey will speak with Sgt. Stewart about a recommendation.   

 Each meeting will include an opportunity for members to discuss public safety 

issues in their neighborhood.  

 Members will e-mail agenda items before each meeting.   

 

 Sgt. Bailey discussed the strategic planning process.  The current draft goals and 

performance measures were distributed to members.   Members were asked to 

review the goals and offer comments/suggestions at the next meeting.   

 

 Members received a tour of the public safety building.  

 

 The meeting adjourned at 8:30 PM. 

 

 

 The next meeting is scheduled for 11-17-16 at 6:00 PM at Hampden Public 

Safety.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 
 
 
 

Hampden Public Safety Citizen Advisory Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

11-17-16 at 6 PM 
 

 
 

 What’s going on in your neighborhood? 
 

 Update on teen member of committee 
 

 Employee profile/Guest speaker-Special Agent Joseph Burke-Maine Drug Enforcement Agency 
 

 Public Safety trends 
 

 Update on Strategic Planning-input from committee members 
 

 Next meeting date 
 

 Adjournment 
 
 
 

Refreshments will be available 

townmanager
Text Box
B-3-c



townmanager
Text Box
B-3-d











townmanager
Text Box
B-3-e





townmanager
Text Box
B-3-f



townmanager
Text Box
B-3-g







townmanager
Text Box
B-4-a









FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday October 3rd, 2016 

MINUTES 

Hampden Town Office 

Attending:  

Councilor Greg Sirois, Chair  Town Manager Angus Jennings  

 Mayor David Ryder    Town Attorney Ed Bearor  

 Councilor Mark Cormier   Resident Walt Kurowski 

 Councilor Terry McAvoy   Resident James Lee  

 Councilor Stephen Wilde   Resident Lisa Carter 

 Councilor Dennis Marble   Residents 

 Councilor Ivan McPike    

 

Chairman Sirois called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 

 

1. Meeting Minutes – September 19th, 2016 – There was a motion and a 

second to approve the minutes as written. Approved 7-0. 

 

2. Review & Sign Warrants – Warrants were reviewed and signed by 

Committee members. 

 

3. Old Business – None.  

   

4. New Business 
 

a. MRC Board of Directors Election – Candidate nomination form – 
Mayor Ryder reported that both Councilor McPike and Councilor Wilde 
have expressed interest in being nominated to serve on the Board of 
Directors for the Municipal Review Committee. There was discussion 
regarding whether the Council could put forward two nominees, but 
neither the Town Manager nor the Town Attorney knew whether this 
would be permitted under the MRC Board Bylaws. There was a motion 
by Councilor Marble seconded by Councilor Sirois to recommend that 
the Council nominate Councilor McPike. The vote passed 4-3 with 
Councilors McAvoy, Cormier and Wilde opposed. 

 
b. Review of rules of procedure under Robert’s Rules of Order for 

Motions to Reconsider – Manager Jennings presented is memo in 
the packet stating that the Motion to Reconsider at the previous 
Finance Committee meeting had been accepted without receiving a 

townmanager
Text Box
B-4-b



second or a vote. Attorney Bearor provided background regarding 
Robert’s Rules of Order as it relates to Motions to Reconsider. He 
noted that the Town Council Rule #11 does not specify that a second 
and vote is needed, but this is not specified in many other areas of the 
Rules but is how motions are generally handled. He noted that the 
Council Rules #19 reference Robert’s Rules. Councilor Marble said 
this should be clarified. Attorney Bearor said that a second and vote is 
part of the Council’s standard procedures.  

 

Councilor McAvoy said he does not feel the language is ambiguous, 
and that it does not specify the need for a second or vote. Councilors 
Marble and Sirois said that the normal process includes a second and 
a vote. Resident Walt Kurowski of 96 Patterson Road said he thinks it 
is unfortunate that the meeting is combative. 
 
Manager Jennings said that it is important for the Committee to decide 
what procedure it will apply so that this does not cause confusion in 
anticipation of future Motions to Reconsider. Councilor Marble asked 
whether, if the Council Rules are ambiguous, this would revert to 
Robert’s Rules and Attorney Bearor said yes.  
 
Councilor Marble made a motion to recommend that the Council adopt 
clarification to the Council Rules that Rule 11 and that motions 
referenced in any other rule that does not specify otherwise would 
require both a second and a vote to take effect. Councilor McPike 
seconded the motion. However Councilor McAvoy pointed out Council 
Rule #14 which states that the Council Rules cannot be dispensed with 
without unanimous consent, and that the Rules cannot be amended if 
advance notice was not provided on the prior meeting agenda. 
Manager Jennings and Attorney Bearor agreed. 
 
Councilor Wilde expressed concern that the Council had already 
revised the Rules many times. Councilor Marble said that he doesn’t 
see it as a change to the Rules so much as a clarification. 

 

c. Discussion on borrowing terms for November referendum 
questions – Manager Jennings said that he recommended basing the 
Treasurer’s Report related to the proposed borrowing Ballot Questions 
on the November election on ten year borrowing, rather than 15 years. 
Motion by Mayor Ryder seconded by Councilor Marble to support this 
recommendation, and the motion passed 7-0. 

 

d. Request for Councilor disclosure statements for any potential or 
perceived conflict or special interest under Section 3.5.F.3 Code 
of Ethics Ordinance- requested by Councilor McAvoy – Councilor 
McAvoy said that he had asked for this item to be on the agenda in 



hopes of reviewing all Councilors’ disclosure forms, and stated that he 
thinks that Councilor Sirois has a conflict of interest relative to potential 
additional ballfields due to Councilor Sirois’ wife’s position as President 
of the Bronco Travel Soccer Club (BTSC) Board of Directors. He made 
a motion to recommend that the Committee find that Councilor Sirois is 
ineligible to participate due to a conflict of interest, and Councilor 
Cormier seconded the motion.  

 

Councilor McAvoy referred to language in the 2015 Recreation Plan, 
page 17, referring to a priority to develop sports fields due to the 
potential loss of the fields at the H.O. Bouchard site. He said that Town 
Recreation programs did not make use of the Bouchard fields, and that 
the fields were only used by BTSC, so the loss of those fields shouldn’t 
affect the Town’s need for fields. 
 
Councilor Wilde said he did not think there was an actual conflict but 
wished to avoid the appearance of a conflict so would support the 
motion. 
 
A vote was taken and the motion failed 3-4 with Councilors Sirois, 
McPike, Marble and Mayor Ryder opposed. 
 
After the vote a resident asked whether the Town Attorney had a 
position on this matter. Attorney Bearor said that what he’s heard does 
not suggest to him a conflict because there is no financial benefit. He 
referred to a statutory standard for conflict that references an 
ownership interest. He said the question, to him, is bias, and whether a 
Councilor can consider a matter without bias. 
 
Councilor McAvoy referred to language in the Ethics Ordinance 
regarding a “financial or special interest” which is not shared by the 
general public. Councilor Marble said that he reads the same language 
to support the finding that there is not a conflict of interest because 
additional playing fields would benefit the general public. Councilor 
McAvoy said that the Fees Ordinance provides for recreational facility 
rental fees for Affiliated Programs to be determined by negotiation, and 
said that no one else gets to negotiate their fee. 

 

e. Reconsideration of request for authorization for cutting, 
stumping, grinding, permitting and site preparation on the Lura 
Hoit Pool site for the purpose of additional recreational fields and  
parking – Manager Jennings summarized the procedural history of 
this matter. Mayor Ryder made a motion to recommend that the 
Council approve authorization for cutting, stumping, grinding, 
permitting and site preparation on the Lura Hoit Pool site for the 



purpose of additional recreational fields and parking, and Councilor 
Marble seconded the motion.  
 
Councilor Wilde said that this process has been trying, and said we 
ought to put this on a long-term capital planning program. He said he 
would like to see exactly what the Council is proposing to do and what 
it would cost prior to acting. He raised concern that if the land was 
stripped and no money was approved to complete the work it would be 
a bad outcome. He said that he could not support this without seeing 
the whole plan. 
 
Mayor Ryder asked Councilor Wilde whether he’d be more comfortable 
if the work was limited to site survey and DEP permitting. Councilor 
Wilde said there are many questions that haven’t been taken up yet 
such as lighting, irrigation, electricity. He said the range of costs is 
wide because we don’t know specifics. He said there should be a 
cooling off period. 
 
Councilor Marble said that the wording of the motion is not ideal, but 
said we’ve been aware of the need for field space for two years and 
we’re recommending to analyze what we have and what we don’t 
have. He said that this motion would provide staff with general 
guidance, which staff would then carry out. 
 
Councilor McAvoy asked Manager Jennings whether he considered 
this a capital project. Manager Jennings said that it is his opinion that 
the project as a whole would be a capital improvement because it 
would add lasting value to a Town asset. Councilor McAvoy noted 
requirements in the Town Charter for capital planning that have not 
been met, and asked Manager Jennings if we should not pay attention 
to the Town Charter. Manager Jennings said he did not say that, but 
he cautioned against the “perfect becoming the enemy of the good,” 
noting that the Council had adopted a Capital Program in June for the 
first time in many, many years. He said that he does not think the 
Capital Program is perfect but that it’s far better than has been done 
for many, many years. He noted that the Town has proceeded with 
many capital projects over many years without even having adopted a 
Capital Program, which the Charter requires to take place annually. 
 
Resident James Lee of 383 Sawyer Road said that the current Town 
fields are not properly maintained, yet taxes increased and sewer rates 
went way up. He said he is in favor of more parking, but does not want 
to pay more taxes. He said we should improve what we already have, 
and wait until there is a clear-cut plan with costs prior to going forward 
with additional fields.  
 



Mayor Ryder said that part of this effort is to provide more parking to 
address existing parking problems both at the Municipal Building 
during elections and at the fields. He said that tearing the current fields 
up to replace them is not an option because they would be unavailable 
for use, and his preference is to proceed piece by piece by budgeting a 
small amount of money every year. He said we may not get beyond 
one additional field, but that if we don’t go forward we won’t get 
anything done. He said that proceeding with a detailed plan with cost 
estimates will cost a lot of money. 
 
Mr. Lee said that detailed plans would be needed in order for 
contractors to bid on work.  
 
Mayor Ryder said that something needs to be done about parking and 
that this will require the cutting of trees. Mr. Lee said he thinks the 
Municipal Building parking is underutilized for the athletic fields.  
 
Resident Lisa Carter said she doesn’t know if DEP will let the Town put 
in parking and Mayor Ryder said it requires DEP approval. Mrs. Carter 
said that a procedure needs to be followed and that money would be 
needed for DEP permitting. She asked why it would make sense to cut 
wood before we know what DEP will allow. 
 
Manager Jennings discussed the required DEP permitting process and 
said that site survey and engineered plans, including for stormwater 
management, would be required to navigate that process. Mayor 
Ryder agreed, and said that the engineering, survey and design costs 
could use all of the money that’s being considered. Mrs. Carter asked 
why the vote wasn’t limited to those items. Mayor Ryder said that 
activities below an acre of disturbance do not need DEP approval. He 
said that the DEP permitting process alone could cost $25-30,000. 
Mrs. Carter expressed concern about waiving the bid process and 
cutting trees. 
 
Chairman Sirois called for a vote on the original motion to refer this 
matter to Council and the motion passed 4-3 with Councilors Wilde, 
Cormier and McAvoy opposed. 

 
f. Request for Councilor disclosure statements for any potential or 

perceived conflict or special interest under Section 3.5.F.3 Code 
of Ethics Ordinance – requested by Councilor McAvoy – This item 
was not taken up due to the length of the meeting and the start of the 
Council meeting. 
 

g. Consideration of request to use Recreation Area reserve funds 
(account number 3-767-00), for the purpose of site work for 



additional recreational fields (up to $50,000) and wetlands 
delineation and DEP permitting for additional parking (up to 
$30,000), both at the Lura Hoit Pool site – This item was not taken 
up due to the length of the meeting and the start of the Council 
meeting. 

 

h. Request for Councilor disclosure statements for any potential or 
perceived conflict or special interest under Section 3.5.F.3 Code 
of Ethics Ordinance – requested by Councilor McAvoy – This item 
was not taken up due to the length of the meeting and the start of the 
Council meeting. 
 

i. Request for Council waiver of the bid procedure guidelines for 
authorized activities at the Lura Hoit Pool site – This item was not 
taken up due to the length of the meeting and the start of the Council 
meeting. 

 

j. Review and approval of proposed FY17 Service Charges – This 
item was not taken up due to the length of the meeting and the start of 
the Council meeting. 

 

k. Consideration of proposed Council Order 2016-03 establishing 
Confined Space Entry Policy – This item was not taken up due to the 
length of the meeting and the start of the Council meeting. 

 

l. Consideration of the proposed Business Park TIF professional fee 
reimbursement agreement – This item was not taken up due to the 
length of the meeting and the start of the Council meeting. 

  
5. Public Comment – None.  

 
 

6. Committee Member Comments – None.  
 

 
7. Adjournment 
 

 

Because the meeting had already extended past the scheduled start time of the Town 

Council meeting, the meeting was adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted –   

Angus Jennings, Town Manager  

 



INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday, August 22, 2016 

 
MINUTES – DRAFT 

 
Attending: 
 Councilor Dennis Marble, Chair   Councilor Ivan McPike 
 Mayor David Ryder     Acting Town Manager Joe Rogers 
 Councilor Terry McAvoy    DPW Director Sean Currier 
 Councilor Mark Cormier    Greg Nash (former Public Works) 
 Councilor Stephen Wilde    Rosemary Bezanson (staff) 
 
Chairman Marble called the meeting to order at 6 PM. 
 
1. MINUTES – 7/25/2016 Meeting - Motion by Councilor McAvoy seconded by 

Councilor McPike to approve the July 25, 2016 minutes. 6-0 vote in favor. 
 
2. OLD BUSINESS 
 a.   Sewer financial report 

DPW Director Currier updated the Committee on the sewer spending and 
revenue account.  It was a unanimous consensus that the account seems 
on target. 

  
 b.   Sewer rate setting for MRC/Fiberight 

Director Sean Currier summarized the sewer rate and charges for the 
Fiberight facility.   The rate would be $9.94 per 100 CF.  This would 
include the normal rate of $ 9.74 per 100 CF plus $13,917.00 for 
maintenance of system. 
 
Councilor Wilde has questions on how the rate was calculated and would 
the rate include the pay back to the general fund. 
 
What is the additional cost from Bangor? 
 
It was discussed that this should be reviewed annually. 
 
Greg Nash stated that this is the first industrial use for Hampden and 
there were no rates set for this kind of use.  This is a whole new 
classification under sewer users. 
 
It was recommended to the next Finance Committee meeting set for 
September 8th. 
 

townmanager
Text Box
B-4-c



A motion was made by Councilor McPike to refer this item to Finance 
Committee, seconded by Mayor Ryder.  Voted was 5 in favor – 1 against 
(Councilor Wilde stated he could not support the vote due to unanswered 
questions and because he would not be present at next Finance 
Committee meeting.) 
 

 
3. NEW BUSINESS  
 Chairman Marble moved item C to be taken up first, since Greg Nash was 

attending the meeting for this item.  
 

c.  Discussion of driveway/culvert policy as related to responsibility 
for maintenance/repair of driveway underdrains. 

  
 Greg Nash stated that in the late 80’s and into the 90’s a lot of 

subdivisions were being developed within the town. Most had large 
ditches, which created problems for the home owners in these 
subdivisions.  Greg was directed by the Council at that time to put in 
underground drainage and fill in the ditches, which was budgeted over a 
period of years, and work was completed. Specific roadways or 
neighborhoods were budgeted in each budget year for several years. 
Westbrook Terrace was one of those subdivisions. 

 
The current policy does not address the underground drainage. 
 
Director Currier pointed out that Title 52 section 3251 and 3152 defines 
culverts and drainage.  
 
The cost of 20 George Street, which DPW did repair this summer following 
the Committee’s request, was $800.00 with 80% being labor.  
 
Mayor Ryder asked how long it would take public works employees to do 
the driveways in question. Director Currier mentioned it would depend on 
conditions, but estimated three to four hours with multiple crew and 
equipment.  
 
There have been 4 requests from neighbors of 20 George Street to date. 
 
Underground drainage is referred to as a close system, whereas culverts 
are an open system. 
 
Director Currier asked the Infrastructure Committee what the priorities 
are, the driveways versus the roadways traveled by the public which have 
culverts that have failed and safety becomes an issue.  



 
Councilor McPike stated that roads are a number one priority. 
 
The Committee was in agreement that the bumps in driveways where 
underdrain ditches exist need to be fixed.   The Committee felt that the 
culvert policy could remain unchanged. 
 
Director Currier pointed out that based on his conversation with an MMA 
attorney it was her opinion that bumps in driveways over culverts and 
underdrains are the responsibility of the resident.  

 
a. Request for reserve funding – Municipal Building Reserve – 

repair of drainage. 
  
 Councilor Wilde made a motion to refer the request of $840.72 to Finance 

Committee this was seconded by Councilor McAvoy.  Vote was 6-0 in favor 
of referring this to the Finance Committee.  

 
b. Request for reserve funding – Cemetery Reserve – Grub damage. 
  
 Councilor Wilde made a motion to refer the request of $ 5655.00 to fix the 

grub problem in the cemeteries to the Finance Committee seconded by 
Councilor McPike.  The vote was 6–0 in favor. 

 
Addendum to the agenda. 
 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
 
d. Request for Cemetery Reserve Funding – to repair fence at 

Locust Grove Cemetery damaged in a wind storm.  
 
 Director Currier submitted a request for $750.00 to repair a chain link 

fence damaged at Locust Grove Cemetery.  
 
 Councilor McPike made a motion to refer the request to the Finance 

Committee seconded by Councilor Wilde.  The vote was 6-0 in favor.  
 
Motion to adjourn 7:35 PM 
 
  
Respectfully submitted –  
Rosemary Bezanson, DPW 



 

 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
 
 

 
Town of Hampden 

 
Public Notice 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Hampden Town Council will conduct a public hearing at 
7:00 pm on Monday, November 14th, 2016, in the Municipal Building Council 
Chambers, located at 106 Western Avenue, Hampden, to consider the following: 
 

1. A proposed amendment to the Outdoor Facilities Ordinance, Section 41. Definitions –for 

the addition of “Electronic Smoking Device”  

2. A proposed amendment to the Outdoor Facilities Ordinance – for the addition of Section 

5.12 Smoking 

Copies of the proposed ordinance amendments are available at the Municipal Building 
or online at www.hampdenmaine.gov. 
 
 
 
Paula A. Scott 
Town Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Posted:  10/18/2016 

 

 

http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/
townmanager
Text Box
D-2-a



Town of Hampden, Maine 

Outdoor Facilities Ordinance 

1 
 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN, MAINE 

OUTDOOR FACILITIES ORDINANCE 

 

 

 

The Town of Hampden Hereby Ordains 

Proposed Amendments to the Outdoor Facilities Ordinance 

 

Deletions are Strikethrough Additions Double Underlined 

 

 

ADOPTED DATE:  Hampden Town Council, August 6, 2012 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  September 5, 2012 

 

AMENDED:  Hampden Town Council, November 14, 2016 

EFFECTIVE DATE:   

 

CERTIFIED BY: _____________________________________ 

   Denise Hodsdon Paula Scott, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

Affix Seal 

 

 

 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN, MAINE 

OUTDOOR FACILITIES ORDINANCE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

 

ARTICLE……………………………………………………………………………………PAGE 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE .................................................................................................................. 2 

ARTICLE II. AUTHORITY ........................................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE III. APPLICABILITY ................................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE IV. DEFINITIONS........................................................................................................ 2 

ARTICLE V. PROHIBITIONS ...................................................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE VI. OPERATION .......................................................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE VII. ENFORCEMENT.................................................................................................. 5 

ARTICLE VIII. PENALTIES ........................................................................................................ 5 

ARTICLE IX. SEVERABILITY .................................................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE X. EFFECTIVE DATE ................................................................................................. 5  

 

 



Town of Hampden, Maine 

Outdoor Facilities Ordinance 

2 
 

ARTICLE I. 

PURPOSE 

 

1.1  Purpose.  The purpose of this Ordinance is to provide rules and regulations for the use of 

and conduct in outdoor facilities situated in Hampden.  This Ordinance hereby repeals the 

Dorothea Dix Park Ordinance (adopted 10/16/89) and Papermill Road Recreation Area 

Ordinance (last amended 5/18/09). 

 

ARTICLE II. 

AUTHORITY 

 

2.1  Authority.  Pursuant to the provisions of  Title 30-A M.R.S. Sections 3001 and 3281-3284 

and the Charter of the Town of Hampden, Article II, Section 212, and Article III, Section 302, 

there is hereby established an Outdoor Facilities Ordinance to be organized, administered and 

governed in accordance with the following provisions. 
 

ARTICLE III. 

APPLICABILITY 

 

3.1 Applicability.  This Ordinance provides full power and authority over all outdoor facilities 

within the Town. 

 

ARTICLE IV. 

DEFINITIONS 

 

4.1 Definitions.  Unless specifically defined below, words and phrases used in this Ordinance 

shall have the customary dictionary definitions that give this Ordinance its most reasonable 

application.  Words used in the present tense include the future, the singular number includes the 

plural, and the plural number includes the singular.  The word “may” is permissive; “shall” is 

mandatory and not discretionary. 

 

Alcoholic Beverage:  any beverage containing any amount of alcohol as regulated under state 

law. 

 

Controlled Substance:  any legal or illegal drug, narcotic, hallucinogen, opiate, prescription drug, 

or any other such substance regulated by state or federal law. 

 

Electronic Smoking Device: a device used to deliver nicotine or any other substance intended for 

human consumption that may be used by a person to simulate smoking through inhalation of 

vapor or aerosol from the device, including, without limitation, a device manufactured, 

distributed, marketed or sold as an electronic cigarette, electronic cigar, electronic pipe, 

electronic hookah or so called vape pen. 

 

Motorized Vehicle:  any vehicle that is propelled by an engine, including but not limited to: cars, 

trucks, motorcycles, snowmobiles, ATVs, OHVs, dune buggies, dirt bikes, three-wheelers, go-

karts, and golf carts. 

 



Town of Hampden, Maine 

Outdoor Facilities Ordinance 

3 
 

Outdoor Facility: any park, sports field, forest, wooded area, field, playground, or other property 

for which the Town of Hampden is the deeded owner. 

 

Parks:  Includes the following outdoor facilities: Dorothea Dix Park, Papermill Road Recreation 

Area, Western Avenue Recreation Area, or other areas designated as such. 

 

Public Safety Department: Includes Police, Fire, and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 

Departments. 

 

Sports Fields:  Includes the following outdoor facilities: Ball Field Road Ball Field, VFW 

Recreation Area, Western Avenue Recreation Area, or other areas formally designated as such 

by the Town Council. 

 

Tobacco Products:  cigars, cigarettes, chewing tobacco, snuff, or any other product containing 

tobacco as regulated under state law. 

 

ARTICLE V. 

PROHIBITIONS 

 

5.1 Camping.  No person shall set up tents, shacks, or any other temporary shelter for the 

purpose of overnight camping in outdoor facilities, nor shall any person leave in outdoor 

facilities after closing hours, any movable structures or special vehicle that could be used for 

such purposes.  Upon prior approval of a law enforcement officer of the Town of Hampden, 

overnight camping may be permitted in situations involving unique circumstances. 

 

5.2 Discharge of Firearms.   No person shall discharge a firearm within parks or sports fields as 

defined herein. 

 

5.2.1  Exceptions – The foregoing prohibition on the discharge of firearms shall not apply 

to the firing or discharge of firearms at any military exercise or review; nor to any 

military personnel or law enforcement officers in the performance of their duties or 

authorized training; nor to any person in the lawful defense of his or her person, family, 

or property.  This Section shall also not prohibit discharges as part of sporting events, or 

ceremonial or historical events, with prior notice to the Police Chief. 

 

5.3 Fires.  No person shall kindle, build, maintain or use a fire except in areas designated for 

such purposes.  All fires shall be properly extinguished before the person utilizing the same 

leaves the outdoor facility.   Any fires shall be continuously under the care and supervision of a 

competent person from the time it is kindled until it is extinguished.  Fires may be prohibited by 

the Recreation Director, Town Forester, and or employees of the Public Safety Department 

when, in his or her judgment, the conditions are such that any fire would represent a safety 

hazard. 

 

5.4 Wood.  No person shall cut any wood on any outdoor facility without a prior permit from the 

Town Forester, who shall have the discretion to deny any application for such a permit if he or 



Town of Hampden, Maine 

Outdoor Facilities Ordinance 

4 
 

she determines that the proposed activity is inconsistent with the goals of the forest management 

plan for the property. 

 

5.5 Alcoholic Beverages.  No person shall consume or be under the influence of alcoholic 

beverages in any outdoor facility. 

 

5.6 Tobacco Products.  No person shall consume or use tobacco products within any outdoor 

facility. 

 

5.7 Controlled Substances.  No person shall consume or use any controlled substance legal or 

illegal while within any outdoor facility, unless the person has a labeled container and proof of 

prescription. 

 

5.8 Trash.  No person shall scatter, drop or leave any debris trash or other rubbish within any 

outdoor facility except in receptacles provided for that purpose. 

 

5.9 Animals.  All animals brought into any outdoor facility shall be under the owner’s control at 

all times so as to not interfere with the enjoyment of the outdoor facility by other members of the 

public, if present. No animal shall be off a leash at any time at any sports field as defined herein, 

or at any part of the Western Avenue Recreation Area. Owners shall pick up after their animals. 

 

5.10 Motor Vehicle Access.  Access to outdoor facilities by motor vehicles shall be governed by 

the rules for that facility contained in the Recreation Department policy document “Outdoor 

Facilities Rules and Regulations.” Upon prior approval of a law enforcement officer of the Town 

of Hampden, motor vehicle access may be permitted in situations involving unique 

circumstances.  For specific restrictions for each outdoor facility, please refer to the Recreation 

Department policy document “Outdoor Facilities Rules and Regulations.”  Motor vehicle access 

to a facility’s parking area is allowed, as this section is meant to address access to parts of 

facilities that are not meant for motor vehicles. 

 

5.11 Other Vehicles Prohibited.  No person shall operate a trail bike, all terrain vehicle, 

snowmobile, or any other motorized recreational vehicle within any outdoor facility except for 

on designated trails or areas, or for purposes of maintenance or rescue. 

 

5.12 Smoking.  No person shall smoke within any outdoor facility, park, or sports field. 

“Smoking” includes carrying or having in one’s possession a lighted or heated cigarette, cigar, or 

pipe, or a lighted or heated tobacco or plant product intended for human consumption through 

inhalation whether natural or synthetic in any manner or in any form. “Smoking” includes the 

use of an electronic smoking device. 

 

ARTICLE VI. 

OPERATION 

 

6.1 Hours & Dates of Operation.  Outdoor facilities shall be open to the public from a half hour 

before dawn to an hour after sunset.  Outdoor facilities are open 365 days a year as weather 

allows.  For information on reservations, which facilities are plowed during the winter, and 



Town of Hampden, Maine 

Outdoor Facilities Ordinance 

5 
 

closing times for areas with artificial lighting, please see the Recreation Department policy 

document “Outdoor Facilities Rules and Regulations.”  Snowmobiles are permitted after dark on 

designated trails. 

 

ARTICLE VII. 

ENFORCEMENT 

 

7.1 Law Enforcement.  Any law enforcement officer of the Town of Hampden shall have the 

authority to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance and revoke the permission of any individual 

to use an outdoor facility when the officer observes, or has probable cause to believe, that such 

individual has violated any provisions of this Ordinance, committed a civil infraction within the 

facility, or has violated any provision of the laws and Ordinances of the State of Maine or the 

Town of Hampden within the facility.  The Recreation Department, Town Forester and Code 

Enforcement Officer also have the authority to revoke the permission of any individual to use an 

outdoor facility if they are found to have violated the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

7.2 Enforcement Mechanism.  This Ordinance may be enforced by the institution of legal or 

equitable proceedings in court, including proceedings pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. §4452. 

 

ARTICLE VIII. 

PENALTIES 

 

8.1 Penalties.  Any person, firm or corporation violating any provisions of this Ordinance shall 

be fined not less than Twenty-Five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than One Hundred Fifty Dollars 

($150.00) for each violation.  Each day that such violation is committed or permitted to continue 

shall constitute a separate offense and shall be punishable as such.  Any fines recovered shall 

inure to the benefit of the Town of Hampden. 

 

ARTICLE IX. 

SEVERABILITY 

 

9.1 Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance 

is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

provision shall be deemed as a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

 

ARTICLE X. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

10.1 Effective Date.  Pursuant to Section 213(c) of the Town Charter, this Ordinance shall 

become effective at the expiration of 30 days after its adoption by the Town Council. 



memo
Town of Hampden-Recreation Department

To: Hampden Town Council-Services Committee

From: Shelley Abbott; Recreation Director

CC: Angus Jennings; Town Manager

Date: 10/5/2016

Re: Outdoor Facilities Ordinance Proposed Changes-Vaping Complaint 

On, Wednesday, September 28, 2016, I received an email from a concerned parent on policy for 
vaping at the Lura Hoit Pool Field complex (Western Avenue Recreation Area).  Apparently, 
during Saturday Soccer games, an adult has been vaping alongside the play field during these 
games.  The parent expressed his concerns for this activity an asked that we do something 
about it.  

I researched the Outdoor Facility Ordinance and visited with Hampden Public Safety and 
Hampden Academy Athletic Director, Mike Bisson, that day to find more about vaping and to 
see how this may be handled at other athletic events attended by the public.

In review of the Outdoor Facilities Ordinance, by definition, the site of complaint is included 
within the outdoor facility ordinance.  In reviewing the substance of complaint with Hampden 
Public Safety, Vaping is water vapor that is inhaled when nicotine is heated up electronically by 
an e-cig (electronic cigarette).  It contains no tobacco products.  Additional language would be 
needed to be inclusive of this additional substance.

In reviewing the City of Bangor Public Health’s website and talking to staff, currently e-
cigarettes are unregulated by the US Food and Drug Administration, and there are no safety 
checks or requirements for what can go into an e-cigarette. Bangor Public Health staff advises 
however that work has begun (in May of 2016) toward the creation of regulations for e-
cigarettes by the FDA. The State of Maine requires sales of these devices to adult 18 years and 
older only.
Also notably, in October of 2015, the State of Maine added language to state laws regarding use 
of e-cigarettes in public places.  The 2015 law includes e-cigarettes in the definition of smoking 



memo
for the purpose of restrictions in public places.  Restaurants and bars in Maine have been 
smoke-free since 2004, and outdoor dining areas, beaches, playgrounds and other gathering 
areas in state parks have been smoke-free since 2009.

In the interest of public health, and to continue to promote healthy experiences in our public 
outdoor facilities in the Town of Hampden, it would be my recommendation to add one of the 
following to the language to the Outdoor Facility Ordinance in order to address the use of e-
cigarette/vaping:

OPTION 1 (language from state law)
Article IV. Definitions
4.1 Definitions-
Tobacco Products: cigars, cigarettes, chewing tobacco, snuff, or any other product containing 
tobacco as regulated under state law
(Add) Electronic Smoking Device: “Electronic smoking device” means a device used to deliver 
nicotine or any other substance intended for human consumption that may be used by a person 
to simulate smoking through inhalation of vapor or aerosol from the device, including, without 
limitation, a device manufactured, distributed, marketed or sold as an electronic cigarette, 
electronic cigar, electronic pipe, electronic hookah or so called vape pen.
Article V. Prohibitions
(Add) 5.12 Smoking 
No person shall Smoke within any outdoor facility, park, or sports field.  “Smoking” includes 
carrying or having in one’s possession a lighted or heated cigarette, cigar, or pipe, or a lighted 
or heated tobacco or plant product intended for human consumption through inhalation 
whether natural or synthetic in any manner or in any form.  “Smoking” includes the use of an 
electronic smoking device. 

OPTION 2 (language from RSU 22 Policy)
Article IV. Definitions
4.1 Definitions-



memo
Tobacco Products: cigars, cigarettes, chewing tobacco, snuff, or any other product containing 
tobacco as regulated under state law. 
(New)Tobacco products include but are not limited to cigars, cigarettes, chewing tobacco, 
electronic cigarettes (e-cigarettes) and vapor devices.
Article V. Prohibitions
(Add) 5.12 Smoking 
No person shall Smoke within any outdoor facility, park, or sports field.  “Smoking” includes 
carrying or having in one’s possession a lighted or heated cigarette, cigar, or pipe, or a lighted 
or heated tobacco or plant product intended for human consumption through inhalation 
whether natural or synthetic in any manner or in any form.  “Smoking” includes the use of an 
electronic smoking device. 

Additionally, I would recommend that we purchase and install signage for the Town of 
Hampden Outdoor Facilities inclusive of the new rules.  Currently signage is in place at the 
Ballfield Road Softball field and VFW Ballfields.  There is no signage at the Western Avenue 
Recreation Area, or any of the dedicated park sites to my knowledge.  

The signage currently reads: No Tobacco or Alcohol permitted on (complex name).



townmanager
Text Box
D-3-a











  
 
 

TO:  Town Council 

 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

 

DATE:  November 8, 2016 

 

RE:  Re-endorsement of Emera TIF Credit Enhancement Agreement 

 

 
Please find attached a redlined version of the Credit Enhancement Agreement for the 
Emera TIF that was previously approved by the Town Council in 2015, along with a 
memo from Rudman Winchell explaining the need for a re-endorsement to correct a 
scrivener’s error. This matter was referred to the Council by the Planning & 
Development Committee at their meeting on September 21. 
 
Attorney Stumpfel has recommended that the Council consider the following motion: 
 

“Motion to hereby authorize and direct the Town Manager, on behalf of the Town 
of Hampden, to execute and deliver the amended TIF Credit Enhancement 
Agreement with EMERA Maine for the Bangor Hydroelectric Company operation 
center project, attached to the Town Council’s agenda, for the purpose of 
correcting errors in the original Credit Enhancement Agreement.” 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Text Box
D-5-a







 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

CORRECTED 

 

COLD BROOK ROAD AND EMERA MAINE  

CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 

THIS CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT, made this ___ day of ___________, 

2016, by and between the Town of Hampden, a municipal corporation organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of Maine (hereinafter “the Town”) and Emera Maine, business 

corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Maine with an office in 

Hampden, Maine, formerly known as Bangor Hydro Electric Company (hereinafter “the 

Company”) 

 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town has designated certain real property owned by the Company, 

consisting of two parcels of land located on Penobscot Meadow Drive and Coldbook Road in 

Hampden Maine as a Municipal Development District and Tax Increment Financing District (the 

“District”) in accordance with Chapter 206 of Title 30-A, Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, 

by vote of the Hampden Town Council (the “Vote”) on February 9, 2015; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on the same date, the Hampden Town Council adopted a development 

program and financial plan (the “Development Program”) for the District; and  

 

WHEREAS, on the same date, the Hampden Town Council approved the execution and 

delivery of a credit enhancement agreement with The Company; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town subsequently submitted the District and the Development 

Program as approved by the Hampden Town Council to the Maine Department of Economic & 

Community Development (“DECD”) for final review and acceptance in accordance with Title 

30-A, Chapter 206; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Maine Department of Economic and Community 

Development approved the District and the Development Program on March 27, 2015; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on April 21, 2015, the Town and the Company executed a Credit 

Enhancement Agreement as contemplated by the Development Program and approved by the 

Town Council on February 9, 2015; and      

 

 WHEREAS, the Credit Enhancement Agreement executed by the Town and the 

Company on April 21, 2015, incorrectly states the starting and ending years of the TIF district 

and Credit Enhancement Agreement; and  

 

Deleted: May



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 2 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

 WHEREAS, the Town, and the Company desire and intend that this Corrected Credit 

Enhancement Agreement be and constitute the credit enhancement agreement contemplated and 

described in the Development Program;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual promises 

and covenants contained herein and for the purpose of correcting errors in and replacing the 

Credit Enhancement Agreement previously executed by the parties on April 21, 2015, the parties 

hereby mutually agree as follows.   

 

 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

 

Section 1.1  Definitions.  For the purposes of this Corrected Credit Enhancement 

Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings specified in herein unless the context 

clearing requires otherwise: 

 

"Agreement" shall mean this Credit Enhancement Agreement between the Town, and 

The Company. 

 

“Assessment Date” means April 1st of each calendar year, the date fixed by Maine law for 

valuation and municipal tax liability with respect to the ensuing Tax Year. 

 

“Captured Assessed Value” means that portion of the Increased Assessed Value that is 

annually retained within the District for the purpose of funding the District Development 

Program, as provided in the approved Development Program for the District.  Provided, 

however, that “Captured Assessed Value” for the purpose of funding the District’s 

Development Program shall not include the taxable value of any new personal property or 

equipment to be located within the District.  As provided in the Financial Plan of the 

Development Program, the Captured Assessed Value shall be equal to one hundred percent 

(100%) of the Increased Assessed Value for each of the twenty Tax Years beginning July 1, 

2014 and ending June 30, 2034; and shall be equal to the following percentages of the 

Increased Assessed Value for each of the five Tax years beginning July 1, 2034 and ending 

June 30, 2039. 

 

FY 2034-2035:  Eighty percent (80%) 

FY 2035-2036:  Sixty-Five percent (65%) 

FY 2036-2037:  Forty percent (40%) 

FY 2037-2038:  Fifteen percent (15%) 

FY 2038-2039:  Five percent (5%) 

“Current Assessed Value” means the taxable value of all real estate located within the 

District (but excluding personal property and equipment) as of the annual Assessment Date.  

 

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 40

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 8

Deleted: 8

Deleted: 9

Deleted: 9

Deleted: 40



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 3 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

"Development Program" means the development program for the District adopted by the 

Hampden Town Council on February 9, 2015. 

"Development Program Fund" means the development program fund described in the 

Financial Plan Section of the Development Program and established and maintained pursuant to 

Article II hereof. 

 

"District" means the Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development District 

and Tax Increment Financing District designated by the Town pursuant to Chapter 206 of 

Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, adopted by the Hampden Town 

Council on February 9, 2015. The District consists of the property described in Exhibit A-1, 

Exhibit A-2 and Exhibit A-3 attached hereto. 

 

"Financial Plan" means the financial plan described in the "Financial Plan" section of the 

Development Program. 

 

"Fiscal Year" (sometimes abbreviated “FY”) means July 1 to June 30 each year or such 

other fiscal year as the Town may establish from time to time. 

 

“Increased Assessed Value” means the amount, in any Tax year, by which the Current 

Assessed Value in the District attributable to the Project (Phase I and Phase II) exceeds the 

Original Assessed Value.  If the Current Assessed Value within the District does not exceed 

the Original Assessed Value in any Tax Year, there is no Increased Assessed Value for that 

Tax Year.  

 

"Original Assessed Value" means $1,928,200.00, the assessed value of taxable real 

property located within the District, as of March 31, 2014 (April 1, 2013). 

 

"Project" means the design, planning, development, acquisition, construction and 

installation of capital improvements at the Company’s facilities located now and hereafter 

within the District and as described as the Capital Program in the Development Program. 

 

"Project Cost Account" means the Project Cost Account described in the Financial Plan 

Section of the Development Program and established and maintained pursuant to Article IV 

hereof. 

 

"Property Taxes" means any and all ad valorem property taxes in excess of any county, 

state or special district taxes, levied, charged or assessed against real estate located in the 

District by the Town or on its behalf.  

 

"Qualified Investments" shall mean any and all securities, obligations or accounts in 

which municipalities may invest their funds under applicable Maine law. 

 

"Retained Tax Increment Revenues" means, in each Tax Year this Agreement remains in 

effect, the amount Property Taxes assessed and collected with respect to the Captured Assessed 

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 5

Deleted: = 

Deleted: 4



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 4 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

Value in the District. pursuant to the terms of the Development Program, for the purpose of 

funding the Development Program. 

 

“Retained Tax Increment Revenues – Company’s Share” means, in each Tax Year this 

Agreement remains in effect, the following percentages of Retained Tax Increment Revenues 

attributable to the Company Tract shown on Exhibit A-2, to be returned to the Company in 

accordance with this Credit Enhancement Agreement, for the purpose of defraying the 

Company’s costs of developing and building the Project, which may include Company’s 

financing costs. 

 

FY 2015-2016 through FY 2019-2020:  Fifty percent (50%) 

FY 2020-2021 through FY 2024-2025:  Seventy-five percent (75%) 

FY 2025-2026 through FY 2029-2930:  Fifty percent (50%) 

FY 2030-2031 through FY 2034-2035:  Twenty-five percent (25%) 

FY 2035-2036 through FY 2038-2039:  None  

 

"Tax Payment Date" means the later of the date(s) on which Property Taxes assessed by 

the Town against Real Estate located in the District are due and payable or are actually paid. 

 

“Tax Year” means the Town’s annual July 1st through June 30th fiscal year.   

 

Section 1.2  Interpretation and Construction. In this Agreement, unless the context 

otherwise requires: 

 

(a) The terms "hereby," "hereof," "hereto," "herein," "hereunder" and any similar 

terms, as used in this Agreement, refer to this Agreement, and the term "hereafter" means after, 

and the term "heretofore" means before the date of delivery of this Agreement. 

 

(b) Words importing a particular gender mean and include correlative words of every 

other gender and words importing the singular number mean and include the plural number 

and vice versa. 

 

(c) Words importing persons mean and include firms, associations, partnerships 

(including limited partnerships), limited liability companies, trusts, corporations and other 

legal entities, including public or governmental bodies, as well as any natural persons. 

 

(d) Any headings preceding the texts of the several Articles and Sections of this 

Agreement, and any table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shall be 

solely for convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement, nor shall 

they affect its meaning, construction or effect. 

 

(e) All notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing and, unless a certain 

number of days is specified, within a reasonable time. 

 

(f) If any clause, provision or Section of this Agreement shall be ruled invalid by 

Deleted: 3035

Deleted: 9

Deleted: 40



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 5 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such clause, provision or Section shall 

not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof. 

 

(g) All references to Exhibits in this Corrected Credit Enhancement Agreement shall 

be deemed to refer to the Exhibits of the corresponding number attached to the original Credit 

Enhancement Agreement executed by the parties on April 21, 2015, whether or not attached 

hereto.  

 

 

 

ARTICLE II 

DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUND AND FUNDING REQUIREMENTS 

 

Section 2.1  Creation of Development Program Fund. The Town hereby confirms the 

creation and establishment of a segregated fund in the name of the Town designated a s the 

"Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Development District and Tax Increment Financing District 

Development Program Fund" (the "Development Program Fund") pursuant to, and in accordance 

with, the terms and conditions of the Development Program. The Development Program Fund shall 

consist of a single Project Cost Account, which shall include a Company Project Cost Sub-

account and a Town Project Cost Sub-account. 

 

Section 2.2  Deposits into Development Program Fund. The Town shall deposit into 

the Company Project Cost Sub-account of the Development Program Fund within ten (10) days 

after each payment of Property Taxes with respect to Real Estate located in the District, an 

amount equal to that portion thereof constituting Retained Tax Increment Revenues - 

Company’s Share for the period to which the payment relates.  The Town shall allocate the 

amounts so deposited to fund fully and pay the payments due to the Company under Article III 

of this Credit Enhancement Agreement, both past due, if any, and coming due within the 

following 12 months.   After payment by the Town of the amount(s) due to the Company for each 

fiscal year, any revenue resulting from the investment of monies in the Company Project Cost 

Sub-account that remains in the Sub-account at the end of the applicable fiscal year shall be 

transferred by the Town to the Town Project Cost Sub-account.  

 

Section 2.3  Use of Monies in Company Project Cost Sub-account. Monies deposited in the 

Company Project Cost Sub-account shall be used and applied exclusively to fund the Town's 

payment obligations described in Article III hereof. 

 

Section 2.4  Monies Held in Trust. All monies required to be deposited with or paid into 

the Company Project Cost Sub-account of Development Program Fund to fund payments to the 

Company under the provisions hereof and the provisions of the Development Program, but 

excluding any investment earnings thereon, shall be held by the Town in trust, for the benefit of 

the Company. 

 

Section 2.5  Investments. The monies in the Company Project Cost Sub-account not 

immediately paid to the Company shall be invested and reinvested in Qualified Investments as 

Deleted: ¶



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 6 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

determined by the Town. The Town shall have discretion regarding the investment of such 

monies, provided such monies are invested in Qualified Investments. As and when any 

amounts thus invested may be needed for disbursements, the Town shall cause a sufficient 

amount of such investments to be sold or otherwise converted into cash to the credit of such 

account. The Town shall have the sole and exclusive right to designate the investments to be 

sold and to otherwise direct the sale or conversion to cash of investments made with monies in 

the Company Project Cost Sub-account. 

 

Section 2.6  Liens. The Town shall not create any liens, encumbrances, or other interests 

of any nature whatsoever, nor shall it hypothecate the Company Project Cost Sub-account of the 

Development Program Fund or any funds therein, other than the interest granted to the Company 

hereunder in and to the amounts on deposit. 

 

 

ARTICLE III 

PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS 

 

Section 3.1  Credit Enhancement Payments. The Town agrees to pay to The Company 

within thirty (30) days following each Tax Payment Date all amounts then on deposit in the 

Company Project Cost Sub-account, excluding earnings thereon; provided however, that all 

payments made hereunder shall be used only to pay Company’s Project Costs directly or to 

reimburse the Company for payment of Project Costs (including payment or reimbursement 

of debt service on indebtedness incurred to finance such Project Costs). 

 

Such reimbursement payments shall be made by the Town in each Tax Year beginning 

with the Tax Year starting July 1, 2015 and ending with at the conclusion of the Tax Year 

ending June 30, 2035.  The Town shall make all such payments with respect to the District to 

the Company, its successors and assigns. The obligation of the Town to make such payments 

shall be a limited obligation payable solely out of monies actually on deposit in the Company 

Project Cost Sub-account of the Development Program Fund and shall not constitute a general 

debt or obligation on the part of the Town or a general obligation or charge against or pledge of 

the faith and credit or taxing power of the Town, the State of Maine or any political 

subdivision thereof. 

 

Section 3.2  Failure to Make Payment. In the event the Town should fail to or be 

unable to make any of the payments required under Section 3.1 hereof, the item or installment 

so unpaid shall continue from year-to-year as a limited obligation of the Town under the 

terms and conditions hereinafter set forth until the unpaid amount shall have been fully paid.  . 

In the event of such default by the Town, the Company shall also have the right to initiate and 

maintain an action to specifically enforce the Town's obligations hereunder, including 

without limitation, the Town's obligation to deposit all Retained Tax Increment Revenues – 

Company’s Share to the Company project Cost Sub-account of the Development Program Fund 

and to make payments to the Company. 

 



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 7 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

Section 3.3  Manner of Payments. The payments provided for in this Article III shall be 

paid in immediately available funds directly to the Company in the manner provided 

hereinabove for its own use and benefit. 

 

Section 3.3A  Company’s Payment Obligations.  The Company agrees that during the 

term of this Agreement it shall pay, when due, all amounts lawfully assessed by the Town as 

Property Taxes against Real Estate located in the District.  

 

In the event that the Company shall fail, for any reason, to pay the full amount of any 

such lawful Property Tax assessment when due, amounts actually paid by the Company shall be 

applied as follows: 

 

First, to payment of Property Taxes assessed against that portion of Real Estate located in 

the District constituting the Original Assessed Value of the District; 

 

Second, to payment the Town’s portion of Retained Tax Increment Revenues on Real 

Estate located in the District; and 

 

Third, to payment of Retained Tax Increment Revenues – Company’s Share.     

 

Section 3.3B  Property Tax Valuation Appeals.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 

deemed to waive the Company’s right to appeal the Town’s valuation or assessment of Real 

Estate or other Property located in the District for tax purposes, in the same manner as provided 

by law for assessment and valuation appeals.  Provided however, that in the event of a successful 

valuation appeal with respect to Real Estate located in the District, all amounts due to the 

Company under this Agreement as property tax reimbursements shall be based upon the final 

valuation and tax amount actually paid for the Tax Year concerned, as determined through the 

appeals process.      

 

Section 3.4  Obligations Unconditional. Except as directly provided herein, the 

obligations of the Town to make the payments described in this Agreement in accordance with 

the terms hereof shall be absolute and unconditional irrespective of any defense or any rights 

of setoff, recoupment or counterclaim it might otherwise have against the Company.  Except as 

otherwise expressly provided herein, the Town shall not suspend or discontinue any such 

payment or terminate this Agreement for any cause, including without limitation, any acts 

or circumstances that may constitute failure of consideration or frustration of purpose or 

any damage to or destruction of the Project or any change in the tax or other laws of the United 

States, the State of Maine or any political subdivision of either thereof, or any failure of the 

Company to perform and observe any agreement or covenant, whether expressed or implied, 

or any duty, liability or obligation arising out of or connected with this Agreement or the 

Development Program. 

  

Section 3.5  Limited Obligation. The Town's obligations of payment hereunder shall be 

limited obligations of the Town payable solely from monies on deposit in the Company Project 

Cost Sub-account of the Development Program Fund, pledged therefor under this Agreement. 



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 8 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

The Town's obligations hereunder shall not constitute a general debt or a general obligation or 

charge against or pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of the Town, the State of Maine, 

or of any municipality or political subdivision thereof, but shall be payable solely from Retained 

Tax Increment Revenues – Company’s Share payable to the Company hereunder, whether or not 

actually deposited into the Company Project Cost Sub-account of the Development Program 

Fund. This Agreement shall not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate the Town, the 

State of Maine, or any other municipality or political subdivision to levy or to pledge any 

form of taxation or to levy or to make any appropriation for their payment, excepting the 

Town's obligation to levy property taxes upon the Project and the pledge of the Retained Tax 

Increment Revenues, and earnings thereon, established under this Agreement. 

 

 

 Section 3.7  Indemnity.  The Company agrees to defend, indemnify, pay, reimburse 

and hold the Town, its councilors, officers, agents and employees harmless from and 

against any and all claims, suits, liabilities, actions, proceedings and expenses, including, 

without limitation, attorneys fees and expenses and accountant’s fees and expenses, 

arising out of this Agreement, the Development Program or any claim or illegality or 

invalidity of the Agreement or the Development Program or the Town’s approval of the 

District, this Agreement or the Development Program or out of the Town’s preparation 

and participation of this Agreement or the Development Program.  Provided, however, 

that these indemnification provisions shall apply only to matters directly related to the 

Tax Increment Financing portion of the Development Program and this Agreement. 

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

PLEDGE AND SECURITY INTEREST 

 

Section 4.1  Pledge of Company Project Cost Sub-account. In consideration of this 

Agreement and other valuable consideration and for the purpose of securing payment of the 

amounts provided for hereunder to the Company by the Town, according to the terms and 

conditions contained herein, and in order to secure the performance and observance  of all of 

the Town's covenants and agreements contained herein, the Town hereby grants a security 

interest in and pledges to the Company the Company Project Cost Sub-account of the 

Development Program Fund to the extent of the Company's rights under this Agreement to 

receive funds from such Project Cost Account and all sums of money and other securities and 

investments now or hereafter therein. 

 

Section 4.2  Perfection of Interest. The Town shall cooperate with the Company in 

causing appropriate financing statements and continuation statements naming The Company as 

pledge of all amounts from time to time on deposit in the Company Project Cost Sub-account of the 

Development Program Fund to be duly filed and recorded in the appropriate state offices as 

required by and permitted under the provisions of the Maine Uniform Commercial Code or other 

similar law as adopted in the State of Maine and any other applicable jurisdiction, as from time 

to time amended, in order to perfect and maintain the security interests created hereunder. 

 



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 9 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

Section 4.3  Further Instruments. The Town shall, upon the reasonable request of the 

Company, at the Company’s sole expense, from time to time execute and deliver such further 

instruments and take such further action as may be reasonable and as may be required to carry 

out the provisions of this Agreement; provided, however, that no such instruments or actions 

shall impose any obligation or expense on the Town additional to the obligations and expenses 

contained elsewhere herein or constitute a pledge of the credit of the Town. 

 

Section 4.4  No Disposition of Company Project Cost Sub-account. Except as 

permitted hereunder, the Town shall not sell, lease, pledge, assign or otherwise dispose, 

encumber or hypothecate any interest in the Company Project Cost Sub-account of the 

Development Program Fund and will promptly pay or cause to be discharged or make adequate 

provision to discharge any lien, charge or encumbrance on any part hereof not permitted hereby. 

 

Section 4.5  Access to Books and Records. All books, records and documents in the 

possession of the Town relating to the District, the Development Program, this Agreement and the 

monies, revenues and receipts on deposit or required to be deposited into the Development 

Program Fund shall at all reasonable times be open to inspection by the Company, its agents and 

employees. 

 

 

ARTICLE V 

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

 

Section 5.1  Events of Default. Each of the following events shall constitute and be 

referred to in this Agreement as an "Event of Default:" 

 

(a) any failure by the Town to pay any amounts due to the Company when the same shall 

become due and payable; 

 

(b) any failure by the Town to make deposits into the Development Program Fund and/or the 

Project Cost Account as and when due; 

 

(c) any failure by the Town or the Company to observe and perform in all material respects 

any covenant, condition, agreement or provision contained herein on the part of the 

Town or the Company to be observed or performed; provided however, that failure of the 

Company to pay Property Taxes when due shall not constitute an event of default 

hereunder; or 

 

(d) if a decree or order of a court or agency or supervisory authority having jurisdiction in the 

premises of the appointment of a conservator or receiver or liquidator of, any insolvency, 

readjustment of debt, marshalling of assets and liabilities or similar proceedings, or 

for the winding up or liquidation of the Town's affairs shall have been entered 

against the Town or the Town shall have consented to the appointment of a 

conservator or receiver or liquidator in any such proceedings of or relating to the Town 

or of or relating to all or substantially all of its property, including without limitation, 



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 10 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

the filing of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy by the Town or the failure by the Town to 

have a petition in banking dismissed within a period of ninety (90) consecutive days 

following its filing or in the event an order for release has been entered under the 

Bankruptcy Code with respect to the Town. 

 

Section 5.2  Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default referred to in 

Section 5.1 hereof shall have occurred and be continuing, the non-defaulting party may take any 

one or more of the following remedial steps: 

 

(a) The non-defaulting party may take whatever action at law or at equity as may appear 

necessary or desirable to collect any amount then due and thereafter to become due; to 

specifically enforce the performance or observance of any obligations, agreements or 

covenants of the non-defaulting party under this Agreement and any documents, 

instruments and agreements contemplated hereby; or to enforce any rights or remedies 

available hereunder; and 

 

(b) The Company shall also have the right to exercise any rights and remedies available to a 

secured party under the laws of the State of Maine. 

 

Section 5.3  Remedies Cumulative. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 

any party is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies but each and 

every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given 

under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law, in equity or by statute. Delay or 

omission to insist upon the strict performance of any of the covenants and agreements herein set 

forth or to exercise any rights or remedies upon the occurrence of an Event of Default shall not 

impair any relinquishment for the future of the rights to insist upon and to enforce, from time to 

time and as often as may be deemed expedient, by injunction or other appropriate legal or 

equitable remedy, strict compliance by the Town with all of the covenants and conditions hereof, 

or of the rights to exercise any such rights or remedies, if such Events of Default be continued or 

repeated. 

 

Section 5.4  Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses. Notwithstanding the 

application of any other provision hereof, in the event any party should default under any of the 

provisions of this Agreement and the non-defaulting party shall require and employ attorneys or 

incur other expenses or costs for the collection of payments due or to become due or for the 

enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of the 

Town or the Company herein contained, the defaulting party shall, on demand thereof, pay to the 

non-defaulting party the reasonable costs and expenses so incurred by the non-defaulting party. 

 

Section 5.5  Waiver of Sovereign Immunity. The Town hereby waives its sovereign 

immunity with respect to any actions or suits undertaken the Company, its successors or assigns, 

arising out of, resulting from or involving any alleged default by the Town hereunder or failure 

by the Town to observe or perform any of its obligations hereunder, it being understood and 

agreed that such waiver is a material inducement to the Company entering into this 

Agreement and continuing its pursuit of the Project. 



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 11 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

 

 

ARTICLE VI 

EFFECTIVE DATE, TERM AND TERMINATION 

 

Section 6.1  Effective Date and Term. This Agreement shall become effective upon its 

execution and delivery by the parties hereto and shall remain in full force from the date hereof 

and shall expire upon the payment of all amounts due to the Company hereunder and the 

performance of all obligations on the part of the Town and the Company hereunder. 

 

Section 6.2  Cancellation and Expiration of Term. At the termination or other 

expiration of this Agreement and following full payment of all amounts due and owing to the 

Company hereunder or provision for payment thereof and of all other fees and charges having been 

made in accordance with the provisions to this Agreement, the Town and the Company shall 

each execute and deliver such documents and take or cause to be taken such actions as may be 

necessary to evidence the termination of this Agreement. 

 

 

ARTICLE VII 

ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE OF COMPANY'S INTEREST 

 

Section 7.1  Consent to Collateral Pledge and/or Assignment.  The Town hereby 

acknowledges that it is the intent of the Company to pledge and assign its right, title and interest 

in, to and under this Agreement as collateral for financing for the Project, although no 

obligation is hereby imposed on the Company to make such assignment or pledge.  Recognizing 

this intention, the Town hereby consents and agrees to the pledge and assignment of the 

Company's right, title and interest in, to and under this Agreement and in, and to the payments to 

be made to The Company hereunder, in whole or part, to third parties as collateral or security for 

indebtedness or otherwise, on one or more occasions during the term hereof.   For this purpose, 

the Town agrees to execute and deliver any assignments, pledge agreements, consents or other 

confirmations required by the prospective pledge or assignee, including without limitation, 

recognition of the pledge or assignee as the holder of all right, title and interest herein and as the 

payee of amounts due and payable hereunder and any and all such other documentation as shall 

confirm to such pledge or assignee the position of such assignee or pledge and the irrevocable 

and binding nature of this Agreement and provide to the pledge or assignee such rights and/or 

remedies as it may deem necessary for the establishing, perfection and protection of its interest 

herein. 

 

Section 7.2  Other Assignments.   

 

a.  Except to the extent provided in section 7.1, The Company shall not have the right to 

transfer or assign all or any portion of its rights in, to and under this Agreement, without the 

consent of the Town, which consent may be withheld at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 12 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

 b.  Prior to giving consent to any such proposed assignment, the Town must 

receive documentation in form and substance satisfactory to it, that the proposed assignee 

accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

Section 8.1  Successors. The covenants, stipulations, promises and agreements set forth 

herein shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of the parties 

hereto. 

 

Section 8.2  Parties in Interest.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, nothing in 

this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm or corporation, 

other than the Town and the Company any right, remedy or claim; it being intended that this 

Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Town, the Company and their 

respective successors and assigns.   

 

Section 8.3  Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement 

shall, for any reason, be held to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not 

affect any other provision of this Agreement and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced 

as if such illegal or invalid provision had not been contained herein. 

 

Section 8.4  No Personal Liability of Officials of the Town. No covenant, stipulation, 

obligation or agreement of the Town contained herein shall be deemed to be a covenant, 

stipulation or obligation of any present or future elected or appointed official, officer, agent, 

servant or employee of the Town in his or her individual capacity and neither the members 

of the Town Council of the Town nor any official, officer, employee or agent of the Town 

shall be liable personally with respect to this Agreement or be subject to any personal 

liability or accountability by reason hereof. 

 

Section 8.5  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be an original, but such 

counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same Agreement. 

 

Section 8.6  Governing Law. The laws of the State of Maine shall govern the construction 

and enforcement of this Agreement. 

 

Section 8.7  Notices. All notices, certificates, requests, requisitions or other 

communications by the Town or The Company pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and 

shall he sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when mailed by first class mail, postage 

prepaid, addressed as follows: 

 

If to the Town:  

 



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 13 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

Town Manager 

Town of Hampden 

106 Western Avenue 

Hampden, Maine  04444 

  

If to the Company:  

 

       Legal Notices 

       P.O. Box 932 

       Bangor, Maine 04402-0932 

  

Any of the parties may, by notice given to the other in the manner provided herein, designate 

any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates, requests or other 

communications shall be sent hereunder. 

 

Section 8.8  Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only with the concurring 

written consent of the parties hereto. 

 

Section 8.9  Net Agreement. This Agreement shall be deemed and construed to be a "net 

agreement," and the Town shall pay absolutely net during the term hereof all payments required 

hereunder, free of any deductions, and without abatement, deductions or setoffs. 

 

Section 8.10  Benefit of Assignees or Pledgees. The Town agrees that this Agreement 

is executed in part to induce assignees or pledgees to provide financing for the Project and 

accordingly all covenants and agreements on the part of the Town as to the amounts payable 

hereunder are hereby declared to be for the benefit of any such assignee or pledge from time to 

time of The Company's right, title and interest herein. 

 

Section 8.11  Valuation Agreement. The Development Program makes certain 

assumptions and estimates regarding valuation, depreciation of assets, tax rates and estimated 

costs. The Town and the Company hereby covenant and agree that the assumptions, estimates, 

analysis and results set forth in the Development Program shall in no way (a) prejudice the 

rights of any party to be used, in any way, by any party in either presenting evidence or 

making argument in any dispute which may arise in connection with valuation of or 

abatement proceedings relating to the Company 's property for purposes of ad valorem property 

taxation or (b) vary the terms of this Agreement even if the actual results differ substantially from 

the estimates, assumptions or analysis. 

 

Section 8.12. Development Agreement.  The Development Program and Financial Plan 

for the District as approved by the Town shall be deemed to be part of and incorporated in this 

Agreement.  Provided however, that in the event of any conflict between this Agreement and the 

Development Program or Financial Plan, this Agreement shall control, to the extent permitted by 

law, over any such inconsistent provisions of the Development Program or Financial Plan. 

 



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 14 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

Section 8.13  Integration. This Agreement completely and fully supersedes all other 

prior or contemporaneous understandings or agreements, written or oral, between the Town and 

The Company relating to the specific subject matter of this Agreement and the  transactions 

contemplated hereby. 

 

 

ARTICLE IX 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE PHASE II 

 

 The Town’s regular Credit Enhancement agreement policy is to limit the term to a period of 

ten years.  In consideration of the contemplated construction of Phase II of the Project and the 

relocation of the Company’s corporate offices to the District (Project Phase II), the Town has agreed 

to enter into this Corrected Credit Enhancement Agreement over a period of twenty (20) years as 

reflected in the definition of the term “Retained Tax Increment Revenues – Company’s Share” in 

Section 1.1.  If the Company does not substantially complete Phase II of the Project, including 

relocation of the Company’s corporate offices to the District, by July 1, 2019, the reimbursement 

period shall terminate on June 20, 2025 and the Reimbursement Percentage for Fiscal Years (FY) 

2020-20021 through FY 2024-2025 as set forth in the definition of the term “Retained Tax Increment 

Revenues – Company’s Share” shall be reduced from 75% to 50%.  This termination will occur 

unless the Town and Company agree to a modified credit enhancement allocation as a remedy for 

failure of the Company to complete Phase II or relocate its corporate offices to the District.  Any such 

modification may allow for a credit enhancement equal to or less than the terms set forth in this 

Agreement, but shall not exceed them. 

 

 

ARTICLE X 

RECAPTURE 

 

 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in the event that: 

 

 (i)  The Company, during the term of this Agreement, conveys, assigns, subleases, transfers 

or otherwise disposes of its ownership of the Project; 

 

 (ii)  The Company, during the term of this Agreement, relocates its business in the District, 

including its corporate headquarters, to a location outside of the Town’s corporate limits;    

 

 (iii)  The Company makes any sale, transfer, conveyance or assignment of this Agreement or 

its rights hereunder that is not permitted under Article VII hereof; or 

 

 (iv)  The Company, for a period of 180 consecutive days, ceases to operate the Project in the 

District;  

 

then and in such event only, the Company agrees to repay to the Town, within 30 days of the Town’s 

written request therefor, all amounts paid to the Company by the Town pursuant to this Agreement, 

together with interest on the amounts so paid a 4% per annum computed from the date of each 

Deleted: e



Cold Brook Road and Emera Maine Municipal Development & Tax Increment Financing District 

Exhibit A - Credit Enhancement Agreement 

Page 15 

 

{R1621075.1  02171-042782 } 

payment by the Town to the Company, computed as of the date of such repayment to the Town.  

Provided, however, that for each complete fiscal year after FY 2024-2025 that passes before the 

triggering recapture event, the repayment principal amount shall be reduced by 10%.  For example, if 

the triggering event occurs on July 1, 2028, the payment due would be 70% of all amounts paid to the 

Company by the Town pursuant to this Agreement through the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2028, 

plus interest thereon as calculated above.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and the Company have caused this Agreement to be 

executed in their respective names and their respective seals to be hereunto affixed and attested 

by the duly authorized officers, all as of the date first above written.  

 

 

 

WITNESS      TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

 

 

              

       By: Angus G. Jennings 

       Its: Town Manager 

 

 

        

 

       EMERA MAINE, f/k/a 

       BANGOR HYDROELECTRIC COMPANY 

 

 

              

       By: Gerard R. Chasse   

       Its: President & C.O.O.  

  

 

Deleted: ¶
¶



townmanager
Text Box
D-5-b







Current Account Status
3:15 PM
Hampden

Page 1
11/08/2016

G 3-753-00  RESERVE ACCT / POLICE CRUIS
-23,187.02

0.00
= Beg Bal
= Adjust

-6,947.00
0.00

= YTD Net
= YTD Enc

-30,134.02 = Balance

Per Jrnl Date Vendor--------- Description-------- RCB / Type Debits CreditsCheck
09 0239 09/19/16 09/19/2016 C/R R 0.00 34,000.00CR
10 0284 10/05/16 00000  QUIRK FORD O 2016 FORD EXPLORER R 27,053.00 0.00AP1832

Totals- 27,053.00 34,000.00

Monthly Summary
--Regular Entries-- --Balance Entries--

Month Debits Credits Debits Credits
September
October
Totals

0.00 34,000.00 0.00 0.00
27,053.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

27,053.00 34,000.00 0.00 0.00



townmanager
Text Box
D-5-c







Current Account Status
3:16 PM
Hampden

Page 1
11/08/2016

G 3-702-00  RESERVE ACCT / MUNIC BLD
-15,521.93

0.00
= Beg Bal
= Adjust

-18,159.28
0.00

= YTD Net
= YTD Enc

-33,681.21 = Balance

Per Jrnl Date Vendor--------- Description-------- RCB / Type Debits CreditsCheck
08 0151 08/24/16 00392  P D Q DOOR C BUILDING MATERIAL R 1,000.00 0.00AP1818
09 0222 09/14/16 00141  E.J.PRESCOTT BLDG DRAINAGE SUPPLIES R 840.72 0.00AP1825
10 0298 10/06/16 10/06/2016 C/R R 0.00 20,000.00CR

Totals- 1,840.72 20,000.00

Monthly Summary
--Regular Entries-- --Balance Entries--

Month Debits Credits Debits Credits
August
September
October
Totals

1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
840.72 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00
1,840.72 20,000.00 0.00 0.00



townmanager
Text Box
D-5-d



Current Account Status
3:14 PM
Hampden

Page 1
11/08/2016

G 3-780-00  RESERVE ACCT / MATCHING GR
-15,073.87

0.00
= Beg Bal
= Adjust

1,389.66
0.00

= YTD Net
= YTD Enc

-13,684.21 = Balance

Per Jrnl Date Vendor--------- Description-------- RCB / Type Debits CreditsCheck
07 0037 07/13/16 00481  TOWN OF HAMP MATCHING FUNDS EXTRACTOR R 818.00 0.00AP1811
09 0247 09/21/16 00481  TOWN OF HAMP BALLISTIC SHIELD R 571.66 0.00AP1831

Totals- 1,389.66 0.00

Monthly Summary
--Regular Entries-- --Balance Entries--

Month Debits Credits Debits Credits
July
September
Totals

818.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
571.66 0.00 0.00 0.00

1,389.66 0.00 0.00 0.00



 

 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
 

 
 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC BID 

 
 
The Town of Hampden, Maine will receive sealed proposals for Sidney Boulevard Storm 
Drain Improvements.  Proposals are required to be submitted to the Hampden Town 
Office, located at 106 Western Avenue, Hampden, Maine 04444, on or before 
November 9, 2016 at 1pm, at which time all bids will be publicly opened. A bid tab will 
be documented and presented at the next regularly scheduled Council meeting, on 
November 14, 2016, at which time the winning bid will be awarded. 
 
Request for Proposals, Specifications and the Contract Documents, are available at the 
Hampden Town Office at 106 Western Avenue, Hampden Maine 04444.  Questions 
regarding this RFP may be directed to Sean Currier, Director of Public Works by calling 
862-3337. 

 
 
 
 
 
Paula A. Scott, CCM 
Town Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 
11/01/2016 

 

 

townmanager
Text Box
D-5-e



 

 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

106 WESTERN AVE. 
HAMPDEN, ME 04444 

TEL 862-3337                                  FAX   862-5067 

 
November 9, 2016  

                                                                                 
To: Angus Jennings 
From: Sean Currier 
Subject: 2016 Sidney Boulevard Storm Drain Improvements 

 
 

 Sidney Boulevard Storm Drain Improvements were put out to bid with sealed bids due today 
at 1pm. We had seven (7) responses with proposals ranging from $22,620 to $43,000.24. 
The proposals include replacing the existing collapsed 30” cmp pipe under Sidney 
Boulevard with 30” HDPE pipe along with a 5’ diameter catch basin and approximately 50’ of 
new 15” HDPE for future connection.  

 
 I would like to recommend the award of the contract to Gardner Construction in the amount 

of $22,620.00 from the operating budget line item 10-10-22-20.  
 
  

Thank you for your consideration, 

 
Sean Currier 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



townmanager
Text Box
D-5-f

townmanager
Rectangle

townmanager
Text Box
Note: Bids are due Monday morning. I anticipate presenting a recommendation for contract award on Monday night. - Angus



 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 

Email: 

townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

Request for Bid Proposals 

Topographic Survey of Municipal Building and Pool Site 

The Town of Hampden is seeking bid proposals for topographic survey of the Town-

owned site at 106 and146 Western Avenue which includes the Municipal Building, the 

Lura Hoit Pool, athletic fields and undeveloped land. The Scope of Services including a 

layout plan of the site is attached to this Request for Bid Proposals. 

Prospective bidders who wish to view the project prior to bidding are invited to attend an 

optional pre-bid meeting on Tuesday, November 8, 2016 at 11:30 AM at the Municipal 

Building Conference Room, 106 Western Avenue, Hampden, ME.  

Prospective bidders may submit written questions regarding this Request for Bid 

Proposals to the Town Manager on or before Wednesday, November 9 at noon. 

Questions may be submitted at the Municipal Building, Monday through Thursday from 

7:30 AM until 6 PM, or via email to townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov.  The Town will 

prepare written responses to all questions received, and will provide responses in an 

Addenda to all prospective bidders that participate in the pre-bid meeting, or who notify 

the Town Manager in writing that they wish to be considered a prospective bidder. 

Sealed bids, clearly marked “Bid Proposal: Topographic Survey” must be received no 

later than Monday, November 14 at 8 AM addressed to:  

 Town Clerk 

 Town of Hampden 

 106 Western Avenue 

 Hampden, ME  04444 

A Statement of Bidders Qualifications (Attachment A) must be submitted with the Bid 

Proposal. All bids shall be submitted on the bid form supplied by the Town (Attachment 

B). Any bid received after the date and time of opening will be rejected and returned 

unopened to the bidder. Bids may not be submitted by email. 

Bidders shall adhere to items specified in General information to bidders, attached. 

Bids will be publicly opened at the Hampden Municipal Building Conference Room at 8 

AM on Monday, November 14, 2016. Bids shall include a statement of proposed price to 

complete the work including sufficient detail for the Town to understand the basis of the 

costs, as well as any assumptions or limitations. Exceptions to the specifications are to 

be listed separately, attached to and submitted with Bidder’s proposal.   

mailto:townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov


2 

The Town Manager shall recommend a vendor and budget to the Finance Committee 

and the Town Council. Upon Council authorization of budgeted Reserve Funds, to be 

proposed at the meeting on November 14 at 7 PM, the Town Manager will execute a 

contract with the selected vendor and will schedule the work. 

Prior to execution of a contract, the contractor must provide proof of workers 

compensation insurance, and of liability insurance with a $400,000 minimum coverage, 

and shall provide a certificate naming the Town of Hampden as additionally insured. 

The Town of Hampden reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids. 

 

Project Scope of Work 

Topographic Survey of Municipal Building and Pool Site 

The subject property is Hampden Assessors Parcel 09-0-018 located at 106 and 146 

Western Ave. (Online GIS mapping at http://www.axisgis.com/hampdenme/). A map of 

the project locus is attached as Exhibit 1.  

Project Deliverables: 

 Survey location and dimensions of all site features including but not limited to, 

buildings, pavement, striping, utility poles, manholes, catch basins, hydrants, 

obscured area boundary, playground features, athletic equipment, continuous 

tree lines, individual trees over 2” in diameter not associated with tree lines, pipe 

line easement, etc. 

 Provide 2’ contours for the portion of the site indicated in Exhibit 1 (approx. 25.8 

acres). 

 Provide 1’ contours for the portion of the site indicated in Exhibit 1 (approx. 6.6 

acres for Pool area; approx. 5.7 acres for Town Offices/Post Office area). 

 Spatial data collected to be provided electronically in PDF and ArcGIS shapefile 

format, in addition to two (2) hard copies printed to 24” x 36”. Projection: NAD83 

Zone 19N. Datum: UTM. 

For aerial survey, proposal must specify number of photo control points. Also, field 

verification and obscured area fill-in to obtain 2’ contours shall be included in bid price. 

Project Timeline: 

The Town wishes to initiate this work as soon as practicable, with the goal of completing 

survey work prior to first snow and delivery of project deliverables soon after. If 

completion this fall proves impossible due to weather, work will be completed as soon 

as practicable thereafter.  

http://www.axisgis.com/hampdenme/


Esri, HERE, DeLorme, MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user community,
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,

IGN, and the GIS User Community

Lura Hoit Pool

Post Office

Town Offices

Western Ave.

Ro
ute

 20
2

Key
1 Foot Contours
2 Foot Contours

Exhibit 1¯ 0 100 20050 Feet

Note: The areas to be surveyed do not match the parcel lines. 
         The areas shown on this exhibit are approximate.



 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 

Email: 

townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

Addendum #1 to Request for Bid Proposals 

Topographic Survey of Municipal Building and Pool Site 

An optional pre-bid meeting was held on Tuesday, November 8, 2016 at 11:30 AM at 

the Municipal Building Conference Room, 106 Western Avenue, Hampden, ME. The 

following is a list of questions asked at the meeting, and responses from the Town: 

Q. Is a survey of the property boundary part of the Scope of Work? 

A. No. 

 

Q. Why is the Town seeking topographic survey rather than relying on 2010 LIDAR 

data? 

A. The Town is at the conceptual planning stage for potential additional development 

(parking and possible recreational fields) on the site. Looking ahead to DEP 

permitting and the need to ensure compliance with stormwater regulations (through 

installation of BMPs, etc.), and to potential site design and development, it will be 

important to have accurate topographic survey in order to measure cuts and fills, etc. 

 

Q. What is the budget for the project? 

A. Funding will be provided from the Recreational Reserve account, which was 

budgeted for this purpose. Although there is no established budget for this phase of 

work, our goal is to award a contract for not more than $10,000.00.  Proposals 

should specify whether the complete scope can be completed for this budget. If a 

proposal states that the entire scope is not achievable within the budget, the 

proposal should propose what portion of the scope can be completed for this budget, 

and what changes to scope are proposed to maintain budget (such as reduced 

geographic extent of survey; supplement of some portions of survey with existing 

LIDAR data instead of survey; postponing a portion of the scope until a later phase, 

including specifying which portion is proposed to be postponed, etc. 

 

The Town will respond to any additional questions if they are received in writing by noon 

today, November 9, 2016. Questions may be submitted at the Municipal Building, 

Monday through Thursday from 7:30 AM until 6 PM, or via email to 

townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov.  The Town will prepare written responses to all 

questions received, and will provide responses in an Addenda to all prospective bidders 

that participate in the pre-bid meeting, or who notify the Town Manager in writing that 

they wish to be considered a prospective bidder.  

mailto:townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov


 

 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
 

 
 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC BID 

 
 
The Town of Hampden, Maine will receive sealed proposals for Holiday Lighting 
Electrical Repairs.  Proposals are required to be submitted to the Hampden Town 
Office, located at 106 Western Avenue, Hampden, Maine 04444, on or before 
November 9, 2016 at 1:15pm, at which time all bids will be publicly opened. A bid tab 
will be documented and presented at the next regularly scheduled Council meeting, on 
November 14, 2016, at which time the winning bid will be awarded. 
 
Request for Proposals, Specifications and the Contract Documents, are available at the 
Hampden Town Office at 106 Western Avenue, Hampden Maine 04444.  Questions 
regarding this RFP may be directed to Sean Currier, Director of Public Works by calling 
862-3337. 

 
 
 
 
 
Paula A. Scott, CCM 
Town Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 
11/01/2016 

 

 

townmanager
Text Box
D-5-g



townmanager
Text Box
Please Note: The deadline for submittal of Proposals in response to this RFP has been extended to Monday, November 14 at 9 AM. All other terms and specifications are as stated in this RFP.























Current Account Status
3:27 PM
Hampden

Page 110
11/08/2016

G 1-141-00  GENERAL FUND / TIF Emera

-86,198.00
0.00

= Beg Bal
= Adjust

1,425.00
0.00

= YTD Net
= YTD Enc

-84,773.00 = Balance

Per Jrnl Date Vendor--------- Description-------- RCB / Type Debits CreditsCheck
08 0131 08/17/16 00000  ESRI ARCGIS FOR DESKTOP BASIC R 1,425.00 0.00AP500186

Totals- 1,425.00 0.00

Monthly Summary

--Regular Entries-- --Balance Entries--
Month Debits Credits Debits Credits
August

Totals

1,425.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1,425.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



  
 
 

TO:  Finance Committee and Town Council 

 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

 

DATE:  November 8, 2016 

 

RE:  Resolution approving Penobscot County Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 

 
We were recently contacted by the Director of the Penobscot County Emergency 
Management Agency seeking Town Council approval of a resolution approving the 
2016 Update of the Penobscot County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 
The updated Plan is attached, including redlined edits illustrating changes since the 
previously-approved 2011 Plan (which was revised from the original Plan approved in 
2005). Council approval of the resolution (along with approval from Councils and Boards 
of Selectmen in other communities in the county) is required in order to secure approval 
from FEMA, and the Plan is required to be kept in draft form until that time (hence the 
redlines).  
 
Penobscot County has advised us that no changes to the enclosed draft will be allowed 
since FEMA provided conditional approval in April. 
 
If you have any questions, we can discuss this at Monday’s meetings. 
 
 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Text Box
D-5-h



Penobscot County Hazard Mitigation Plan – 2016 Update 
 

 

 
Prerequisites 

2 - 2 

2.  PREREQUISITES 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
Whereas, natural and man-made disasters may occur at any time, we recognize that to lessen the 
impacts of these disasters we will save resources, property, and lives in Penobscot County; 
 
And whereas the creation of a Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan is necessary for the 
development of a risk assessment and effective mitigation strategy; 
 
And whereas, this multi-jurisdictional county of 3 cities, 52 towns, 4 plantations and a portion of 
Maine’s Unorganized Territory is committed to the mitigation goals and measures as presented in this 
plan; 
 
Therefore the City Councils and Boards of Selectmen of the Incorporated Towns and Plantations 
hereby adopt the Penobscot County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan – 2016 Update; and  
 
Therefore, the Penobscot County Commissioners, acting on behalf of the County and its portion of the 
Unorganized Territory hereby adopt the Penobscot County Hazard Mitigation Plan – 2016 Update.   
 
 

Authorizing Signatures 
 

Town of Hampden 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________  ______________ 
Name                      Town Council, Mayor   Date 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________  ______________ 
Name                      Town Council    Date 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________  ______________ 
Name                      Town Council    Date 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________  ______________ 
Name                      Town Council    Date 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________  ______________ 
Name                      Town Council    Date 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________  ______________ 
Name                      Town Council    Date 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________  ______________ 
Name                      Town Council    Date 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Penobscot County, Maine 
 
 

Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

November 2016 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted:  
    FEMA Approved: 

      Adopted:              

townmanager
Text Box
Note: Complete draft plan is included in the Nov. 14, 2016 Finance Committee packet and is not duplicated here.




